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Vision Statement

HKCAAVQ is locally, nationally, regionally and globally
recognised as an efficient, effective, innovative and accessible
quality assurance agency providing academic and vocational
accreditation and assessment services.
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Mission Statement

To safeguard the quality of the academic and vocational qualifications
available to learners within the Qualifications Framework in Hong Kong and
to strengthen providers’ quality assurance capability; and

To provide professional advice through assessment and consulting services
and to develop, promote and disseminate good practices on quality
assurance.
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APQN 2013 Conference

The HKCAAVQ participated in
the Asia-Pacific Quality Network
(APQN) 2013 Conference held in
Taipei on 6-8 April 2013 to share
its quality assurance processes and
practices. During the conference,
the HKCAAVQ presented a
country paper about its history and
contribution to quality assurance
in Hong Kong. The HKCAAVQ
was awarded the inaugural APQN
Quality Awards in the category
of International Focus at the
Conference.
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NLP Focus Group Meeting

A focus group meeting was held
in April 2013 for accredited Non-
local Learning Programme (NLP)
operators to share their experiences
of the streamlined process for NLP
accreditation. In the same session,
operators provided further feedback
on proposed revisions to the NLP
guidelines and the associated tools.
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Visit by the China Academic
Degrees and Graduate
Education Development Center
A delegation from the China
Academic Degrees and Graduate
Education Development Center
visited the HKCAAVQ on 23 April
2013. The meeting enhanced a
greater understanding of higher
education developments and the
quality assurance work of both
agencies. It also paved the way for
future collaboration in cooperative
research on qualifications
frameworks.
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Highlights of the Year FFE5I%/

Sharing on Use of QF Credit
The HKCAAVQ organised a
sharing session on the use of
QF credit on 29 April 2013 and
invited an operator to share their
practical experience with staff.
The fruitful exchange deepened
our understanding of the practices
used in the assignment of credits in
different institutions.
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HKCAAVQ Signed a MoC with
TEQSA, Australia

The HKCAAVQ and the Tertiary
Education Quality and Standards
Agency (TEQSA), Australian
Government, entered into a
Memorandum of Co-operation to
enhance collaboration between the
two agencies in quality assurance
of higher education. The signing
ceremony between Prof Yiu-Kwan
Fan, then Executive Director of
the HKCAAVQ, and Ms Dorte
Kristoffersen, Commissioner of
TEQSA, witnessed by Ms Michelle
Li, Deputy Secretary for Education,
and Mr. Paul Tighe, Australian
Consul-General Hong Kong, took
place at the HKCAAVQ office on 30
April 2013.
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Qualifications Framework
Stakeholders Forum

The HKCAAVQ participated in
the Qualifications Framework
(QF) Stakeholders Forum jointly
organised by the Education Bureau
(EDB) and the Qualifications
Framework Secretariat (QFS) on
29 May 2013 to celebrate the 5th
anniversary of the establishment
of QF. The Forum provided an
opportunity for stakeholders from
different sectors to exchange views
and comments on the development
and implementation of QF.
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Visit by a Delegation from the
Guangdong Province

A delegation from the Guangdong
Department of Education and
six vocational institutions from
Guangdong visited the HKCAAVQ
on 24 July 2013. The meeting
exchanged information on the
quality assurance system for post-
secondary vocational programmes
and the articulation pathways to
bachelor degree programmes in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.
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HKCAAVQ Annual Briefing on
Accreditation

The HKCAAVQ organised the
Annual Briefing on Accreditation
for operators on 30 August 2013.
The event was well attended by
some 100 representatives from
academic and vocational operators.
At the briefing, the HKCAAVQ
shared with participants the action
taken in response to the operators’
feedback collected via the annual
Operators’ Survey. The event also
provided a platform to exchange
views on our services for continuous
improvement.
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HKCAAVQ and HEEACT signed a
MoC to strengthen collaboration
The HKCAAVQ and the Higher
Education Evaluation and
Accreditation Council of Taiwan
(HEEACT) signed a MoC on 5
September 2013 to establish a
collaborative relationship between
the two agencies. The MoC
was signed by Prof William Lee,
Executive Director of HKCAAVQ,
and Prof Ru-Jer Wang, Executive
Director of HEEACT, at HEEACT'’s
office in Taipei.
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Highlights of the Year £E51%/

Visit by the Finance
Accreditation Agency, Malaysia
A delegation from the Finance
Accreditation Agency (FAA),
Malaysia, visited the HKCAAVQ
on 3 October 2013. The meeting
enabled a better understanding of
the role of both agencies in quality
assurance and paved the way for
future collaboration.
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Study Tour to the New Zealand
Qualifications Authority

A delegation from the EDB, QF
Secretariat and the HKCAAVQ visited
the New Zealand Qualifications
Authority (NZQA) in Wellington, New
Zealand, from 21 to 23 October
2013. The study tour enhanced
understanding of and confidence in
each other’s quality assurance and
qualifications recognition processes.
The delegation also explored
opportunities for future cooperation
between Hong Kong and New
Zealand.
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Visit by a Delegation from
Guizhou

A delegation from the Human
Resources and Social Security
Bureau of Guizhou Province visited
the HKCAAVQ on 29 October
20183. The meeting introduced
accreditation and assessment of
vocational education and training
in Hong Kong, as well as the
HKCAAVQ'’s role in supporting
manpower development in Hong
Kong to the delegation.
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Visit by a Delegation of the
Leadership Foundation for
Higher Education

A delegation from the Leadership
Foundation for Higher Education
visited the HKCAAVQ on 11
November 2013. The delegation of
pro-vice chancellors and deans from
UK universities, explored issues
and trends in the regulation and
quality assurance of transnational
education in Hong Kong with
HKCAAVQ staff.
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QR Operators Briefing

The HKCAAVQ, with the support
of the EDB, organised a briefing
for operators on 29 November
2013 on the latest developments
in the QF and the Qualifications
Register (QR), including the
progress of implementing the
Award Titles Scheme and Use of
QF Credit, and the introduction of
the revamped QR website. The
event was well attended by over
220 representatives from both the
self-accrediting and the non-self-
accrediting sectors.
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Sharing Session for the

Retail Industry

The HKCAAVQ shared with
stakeholders the preparation for
and processes of accreditation
in the Sharing Session for the
Retail Industry organised by the
QF Secretariat, the Retail Industry
Training Advisory Committee
(ITAC) and the Hong Kong Retalil
Management Association on
4 December 2013 for launching
the Specification of Competency
Standards (SCS) for the Retail
industry.
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Launch of the Revamped

QR Website

The HKCAAVQ participated in a
press briefing organised by EDB
to announce the launch of the
revamped QR website and another
new website, named Concourse,
for the self-financing post-
secondary education sector on 23
December 2013. The revamp of the
QR website resulted in significant
enhancements and improvements
in content, functions and
organisation, making the site more
convenient for the public to browse
and use, especially to search and
save relevant information about
qualifications and programmes.
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Specialists Appointment
Ceremony 2014

The Specialists Appointment
Ceremony was held on 17 January
2014. Over 50 Specialists attended
the ceremony to celebrate their
appointment and meet together.
The Ceremony began with
welcoming remarks by the Vice-
Chairman Dr Alex Chan, followed
by an address given by Ms Pecvin
Yong, Principal Assistant Secretary
(Further Education) of EDB, in
recognition of the Specialists’
support to the HKCAAVQ. During
the ceremony, the participants
were also given a presentation
on the latest developments of the
HKCAAVQ.
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Sharing on Credit Assignment
The HKCAAVQ organised a sharing
session on the assignment of QF
credits and invited HKU SPACE
to share their practical experience
and views on some case studies
with staff. The forum was a fruitful
exchange of views and practices on
how QF credit assignment should
be conducted.
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HKCAAVQ won the APQN
Quality Award

The HKCAAVQ won the APQN
Quality Award in the category of
training and support of reviewers.
It is the second year in a row that
the HKCAAVQ was awarded a
APQN Quality Award. The Award
recognised the HKCAAVQ’s
contributions to training and support
of reviewers locally and regionally
and its development of sound and
effective materials for training.
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Staff Forum on the Overview

of the Applicable Provisions

of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance

A talk entitled “An Overview of
the Applicable Provisions of the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance”
was given by HKCAAVQ internal
legal consultant on 14 March 2014 .
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Quality Beyond Boundaries
Forum

The HKCAAVQ attended a forum
entitled ‘Quality Beyond Boundaries
— A Dubai Initiative for International
Branch Campuses’ held in Dubai
on 24-25 March 2014. The
forum provided an opportunity to
exchange and share ideas with
representatives from international
quality assurance agencies on
the challenges of the International
Branch Campus model. The forum
aimed to establish a common
set of agreed principles for future
international cooperation.
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The Honourable Martin LIAO B I&E , SBS, JP
Chairman &

2013/14 was a year of consolidation for the Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ)
where our focus has been on self-reflection and refinement.

Following a holistic review, the Council approved refinements to the
Four-stage Quality Assurance Process in March 2013. A refined
quality assurance model which incorporates enhancement functions
identified in close consultation with the higher education sector
has been developed and implementation is now underway. | have
confidence that this refined model will strengthen our accreditation
approach in underpinning the Qualifications Framework (QF) and
help the sector to continue to raise the bar and to strive for ongoing
learning and development.

Rigorous and robust quality assurance gives public confidence in
the standards and quality of educational provision. This is particularly
important at this time in Hong Kong when we are seeing an increased
number of operators and programmes in the context of a declining
student population. The sustainability of the self-financed education
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sector will depend on how well institutions are able to maintain high
institutional and academic standards. The HKCAAVQ will do its
best to support the sector to provide high quality education and to
promote continuous improvement through our quality assurance
work.

Last year we joined the Education Bureau and other industry partners
in the education and training sector to celebrate the 5th anniversary
of the establishment of the QF. Since the launch of QF, the database
of Qualifications Register (QR) has been increased substantially.
Now it contains over 8,100 qualifications of diversified fields of study
offered by over 230 operators. Among them, half of the qualifications
are offered by the non self-accrediting operators and quality assured
by the HKCAAVQ.

The globalisation of the world economy, coupled with the global
approach to transnational education have resulted in a growing trend
of internationalisation of quality assurance. To test ourselves against
international standards, in 2015, the HKCAAVQ will undertake an
external review against the Guidelines of Good Practice in Quality
Assurance developed by the International Network for Quality
Assurance Agencies in Higher Education (INQAAHE). We believe
that this exercise would allow us to benchmark ourselves against
world class quality assurance practitioners, to demonstrate that we
adhere to the international good practices and to make sure that
our approach, including to transnational education, addresses the
implications of the growing internationalisation of quality assurance.

The Chief Executive, in his 2014 Policy Address, has pledged to
increase the funding for higher education, strengthen vocational
education and provide long-term support for the sustainable
development of the QF. The recent launch of the Award Titles
Scheme (ATS), Use of Credit and Credit Accumulation and Transfer
(CAT) under QF has also created excellent opportunities for promoting
mutual recognition and articulation among qualifications awarded by
different providers. The HKCAAVQ is encouraged by these initiatives
and the opportunities that lie ahead. Looking forward, we will be
reviewing our vision and mission statements to ensure that they
encompass the emerging trends and opportunities and guide the
HKCAAVQ in pursuing continuous improvement in our service delivery
to boost the competitiveness of Hong Kong’s education system.
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In closing, | would like to thank all former and serving Members of the
Council whose support and contribution have been most invaluable in
setting the HKCAAVQ on its way and in bringing the success it enjoys
today. | would also like to thank all the staff of the HKCAAVQ for their
professionalism and dedicated hard work over the years.

| believe that the HKCAAVQ will have a larger role to play in promoting
and delivering quality assurance in the region in the years ahead, and
| look forward to the continued support of the Council, the Education
Bureau, our fellow agencies and industry partners, as we work
together to shape the local education and training environment into
one that is associated with high quality and standards.
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The Honourable Martin LIAO, SBS, JP
Chairman
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Professor LEE Keng-mun, William Z & # %
Executive Director %=

2013/2014 was a year of change for both the Secretariat of the
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications (HKCAAVQ) and for me.

| was privileged to become the Executive Director of the HKCAAVQ
in August 2013. The HKCAAVQ is not new to me as | was a subject
specialist of the Council and have led and served on a range of
accreditation panels over the years. Having worked in the quality
assurance of higher education, | now have the opportunity to be fully
committed to the HKCAAVQ.

HKCAAVQ's role is to safeguard the quality of education and training
provision in Hong Kong, and | am honoured to have been entrusted
with this mission. During this time of rapid development in the
education landscape, | am confident in leading the organisation with
the support of the Council Chairman, Members and my competent
staff to reach new heights.
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Gate-keeping and Gate-opening Roles

In the past year, the HKCAAVQ effectively performed its role as
“gate-keeper” and “gate-opener” for education and training provision
in Hong Kong. In 2013/14, we conducted over 200 accreditation
exercises covering Initial Evaluation (IE), Programme Validation (PV),
Revalidation, Programme Area Accreditation (PAA) and Institution
Review (IR) in both academic and vocational sectors. Accredited
programmes cover a wide spectrum and come from diverse operators
including education and training institutes, public organisations, non-
government organisations, professional bodies, trade associations,
and commercial corporations of different scales.

Our accreditation services have also expanded to the school sector.
The HKCAAVQ accredited Yi Jin Diploma programmes and an
Applied Learning (ApL) course during the reporting year. They are
now recognised under the Qualifications Framework (QF) as meeting
the standard at QF Level 3. We expect a rise in demand from the
school sector for our accreditation service.

As always, we continued to work closely with the Administration to
support its latest education policies such as the Award Titles Scheme
(ATS) and Use of Credit under QF.

Increasing Public Accessibility

Last year, one of our major developments was increase transparency
in the quality assurance process through the publication of summary
accreditation reports on our website. Since September 2013, the
public has been able to access the reports to know more about our
accreditation decisions. As at the end of March 2014, twenty-one
summary reports for accreditation of academic qualifications and
vocational education and training were published. Positive feedback
collected through an online survey on the publication of accreditation
reports indicates that we are heading in the right direction and we
shall do more to increase our transparency.
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As of March 2014, the HKCAAVQ recorded over 10,500 qualifications
on the Qualifications Register (QR), a sharp rise of 39% compared to
2012/18. Meanwhile, the hit rate on the QR website reached a peak
last July when the results of the Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary
Education (HKDSE) Examination were released. To support the QF
development and the rising number of users, we revamped the QR
website to enhance its usability and functions. With the launch of a
refreshed QR website in December 2013, the public now have a more
convenient way to search for relevant information about qualifications
and programmes.

International Partnership for Quality
Enhancement

The HKCAAVQ has a strong presence in the international community
and has a long history of involvement in different quality assurance
networks. To build on this legacy and further strengthen our
international partnerships, | visited seven quality assurance agencies
in Europe in 2013 including the National Recognition Information
Centre (NARIC) in the United Kingdom, Quality and Qualifications
Ireland (QQ)) and the European Association for Quality Assurance in
Higher Education (ENQA) in Belgium. Through these visits, we have
widened our horizons on the practices of overseas quality assurance
bodies as well as established relationships for future collaboration.
These relationships will enable us to continue to strengthen our quality
assurance processes and align with international good practice.

In addition to visiting overseas quality assurance agencies, we built
partnerships with the Tertiary Education Quality and Standards
Agency (TEQSA) in Australia, the Higher Education Evaluation and
Accreditation Council of Taiwan (HEEACT) and the Council for Private
Education (CPE) Singapore by signing Memoranda of Co-operation in
2013 and 2014.

The HKCAAVQ takes pride in sharing its good practice with other
quality assurance agencies. Our efforts in providing training and
support to reviewers were recognised by the Asia-Pacific Quality
Network (APQN) in its 2014 APQN Awards.
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Into the Future

While keeping the best from our current practices, we continuous
explore the latest developments in education and training to ensure
that our services whether in academic accreditation, vocational
accreditation or qualifications assessment meet the needs of
operators, students, employers and the community. As part of this
process we have reviewed the Council’s vision and mission, and a
new strategic plan from 2015 to 2019 is currently being crafted.
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The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ) was formed under the
HKCAAVQ Ordinance (Cap 1150). As the Accreditation Authority and
Qualifications Register Authority under the Hong Kong Qualifications
Framework, the HKCAAVQ provides quality assurance and
assessment services to education and training institutions, course
providers and the general public. In addition to its statutory roles,
the HKCAAVQ also provides advisory and consultancy services in
education qualifications and standards to government bureaux and
professional organisations in Hong Kong.

The Council is composed of members appointed by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. As of
31 March 2014, the Council membership of 18 includes four non-
local members and 14 local members. Its local membership reflects
expertise and experience in quality assurance, education and training
as well as links with industry and the Education Bureau. The non-local
members come primarily from countries with well-established external
quality assurance systems. They provide valuable advice and global
views, allowing us to ensure that the HKCAAVQ'’s approaches are in
line with the latest international standards and good practices.

The Council meets formally twice a year with meetings of local
members held between full Council meetings.

The work of the Council is supported by three standing committees:
the Qualifications and Accreditation Committee, the Personnel
and Administration Committee, and the Finance Committee. Each
Committee has its own terms of reference, which are detailed in the
Appendix.

The daily operation of the HKCAAVQ is undertaken by the Secretariat
under the leadership of the Executive Director who is an ex-officio
member of the Council.

As of end of March 2014, the HKCAAVQ Secretariat had 90 full-time
staff, most of whom are quality assurance practitioners, seasoned
trainers or education professionals. There are also three part-time
staff including one consultant who provides legal advice.
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Academic Accreditation and Audit

DlysT E Motk

The HKCAAVQ provides a wide range of academic accreditation
services to operators. Our academic accreditation services cover
programmes offered by post-secondary institutions at postgraduate,
degree and sub-degree levels. We also offer accreditation services
for non-local learning programmes (NLP) registered or exempted from
registration under the Non-local Higher and Professional Courses
(Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493), and conduct Institutional Reviews
(IR) for institutions seeking registration under the Post Secondary
Colleges Ordinance (Cap 320) for degree-awarding status.

Local Programme Accreditation

In 2013/14, the HKCAAVQ conducted Programme Validation (PV) for
a total of 20 programmes and Revalidation for 11 programmes, with
the participation of 12 operators. Besides the traditional programmes
in Computer, Finance, Hospitality, Languages and Nursing, we also
accredited programmes in less conventional fields such as Cantonese
Opera and Business Intelligence at Qualifications Framework (QF)
level 5.

In the year under review, we conducted two Programme Area
Accreditation (PAA) exercises for an institution seeking to develop
and operate learning programme(s) within an approved scope of a
programme area at the specified QF level; and processed requests
from nine operators for substantial changes to 24 programmes. We
also conducted an IR exercise for an institution seeking registration
under Cap 320 for degree-awarding status.
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Operational Review T{ERE

Non-local Programme Accreditation e th R R E

The NLP accreditation service quality assures programmes offered BB IEAHRIE - BB TR
in Hong Kong leading to awards of non-local institutions. An RERIIEAMERERTZE  FEBH
NLP accredited by the HKCAAVQ enjoys similar status to locally- FEARMERIR T R RIS TE =R (R % 5 R 2
accredited programmes, and its qualification can be recognised B ZE o IBRAMZ A :RI2—1% » BB,
under the QF and placed on the Qualifications Register (QR). ERIERMRIZ HERFEESFIRER

A - WESINEEA L

During the reporting year, the HKCAAVQ conducted IE for seven EREHAN BB AT AN E
partnerships, PV for a total of 30 NLPs and Revalidation for four EHRAMAFINE I E - BT EEEMN
NLPs, with the participation of seven local operators and 14 overseas BRI T E - B T30ENEE T
partners. In addition, we processed requests for substantial changes PO ESEAR M ERAR © AN - BAPIRIE T B
to 46 programmes involving seven local operators and 13 overseas AR H 2 HF 2 A1 SEF HNE It 5E46
partners. EEPRBEHERIERAEBE -
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Breakdown of Academic Programmes Validated or Revalidated (1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014)
THHFERERNFENEMREHE (201354816 £201453A31H)

Non-Local Programme Validation Local Programme Validation Total #2221 :65
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Enhancement of Academic RAFTERKEESR
Accreditation Services
Last year, the HKCAAVQ continued its efforts to enhance its EF TIEREES NIRATERY -
accreditation service. In April 2013, we organised a focus group BAIR2013F4 5 BB £ /)N EA%%
meeting with operators to share our proposed revisions to the BEUE 5 Z R BEE R IEARHRIZS
guidelines and the new templates developed for NLP accreditation. FEIES| ZBEI MM B X AR - &
Following the feedback received in the focus group meeting, the PSRN NENER B5] THEAN
refined NLP guidelines and the associated tools were published JESI RFFTE T E - Wik20183%7 A L&
on our website in July 2013. In addition, to better define the scope BIARBAE o O BMMITMEE] TEX
of substantial change and enhance the efficiency of assessing BT ERIES] B REBRERTE
substantial changes, revised guidelines on substantial change to REIENEE - RS RIEME « 1B5]1
accreditation status were published in the same period. SITFA R B EE B ABRHEE -
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The HKCAAVQ strives to facilitate operators to undertake
accreditation. We organised briefings for operators to help them
better understand our accreditation criteria and processes. We also
offered tailor-made workshops to enable operators to prepare self-
contained accreditation documents and evaluate their own readiness
for undertaking accreditation.

To facilitate mutual understanding, we regularly have experience
sharing sessions with operators. To promote the use of QF credit, we
organised a sharing session with an operator in April 2013 to share
their practical experience on the use of QF credit. In March 2014,
we also invited an operator to share with us their views on some
authentic cases in relation to assignment of QF credit. These fruitful
exchanges deepened our understanding of the assignment of credits
in different institutions.

The HKCAAVQ employs the Four-Stage Quality Assurance Process
(the Process) to accredit providers and their learning programmes
under the QF. The four stages are Initial Evaluation (IE), Programme
Validation (PV), Programme Area Accreditation (PAA) and Periodic
Review (PR).

Following the 2011 review, and consultation with stakeholders in
2012, the Council approved the following refinements to the Process
and its implementation progressively from 1 June 2013:

()  Highlighting the learner-centred philosophy to guide imple-
mentation

(i)  Renaming Stage 2 from Programme Validation (PV) to Learning
Programme Accreditation (LPA) to align with international
practice

(i) Formalising the combined exercise of Stage 1 Initial Evaluation
(IE) and Stage 2 LPA as a standard route while keeping a stand
alone Stage 1 or Stage 2 as an option for operators

(iv) Formalising the enabling approach via the establishment of a
Facilitating Phase in Stage 1 and Stage 2
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(v) Refining the eligibility criteria for proceeding to Stage 3
Programme Area Accreditation (PAA)

(vi) Adding to and aligning the PAA criteria
(vii) Establishing a Standing Panel on PAA Scope
(viii) Standardising validity periods for Stages 2-4

(ix) Refining QF level-linked accreditation status (Initial Evaluation,
Programme Area Accreditation, Periodic Review)

(%) Introducing annual reporting and regular monitoring via a central
repository

(xi)  Refining PAA scope

During the year, we conducted a pre-test on the Facilitating Phase
to seek comments from operators on the proposed work models
and their associated processes. Operators were also invited to test
run the facilitating models in a pilot study. Apart from the Facilitating
Phase, the HKCAAVQ established a Standing Panel on PAA Scope
to facilitate the processing of PAA case review and better define the
PAA scope.

The HKCAAVQ is appointed by the Registrar of Non-local Higher
and Professional Education Courses to provide professional advice
as to whether a particular non-local course delivered in Hong
Kong leading to the award of a non-local academic qualification or
professional qualification meets the registration criteria as stipulated
in Cap 493. We also advise the Registrar whether a registered non-
local course continues to meet the registration criteria through annual
assessments.

In the reporting year, the HKCAAVQ continued to work collaboratively
with the Non-local Courses Registry to revise the form for annual
return and develop a form for course changes in order to improve the
efficiency of the assessment service.
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Operational Review T{ERE

Breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment (1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014) by discipline of studying

REMEBRS B MFEERITMAFEF (2013F481H £2014F3H31H)
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Breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment (1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014) by geographic origin

EERERMMES BN MRERTTMEAFEF (201354510 £2014F3H31H)

Austraha
Others —‘ S
4

USA Malnland China

HEI A

Australia
N 2

. Mainland China
REAM 1

UK
36

USA
ESER

. Others
HAth 1

25



26

Operational Review T{E$RES

Breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment (1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014) by level of study
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Assessment of CEF Courses

Since the inception of the Continuing Education Fund (CEF)
in June 2002, the HKCAAVQ has been commissioned by the
Government to provide advisory services in regard to the quality
assurance of the CEF courses. The HKCAAVQ works closely
with the Labour and Welfare Bureau (LWB) and the Office of the
Continuing Education Fund through regular tripartite meetings,
advises the Government on the suitability of courses to be
included in the list of reimbursable courses under the CEF, and
assesses proposed amendments to existing CEF courses. The
HKCAAVQ also conducts surprise audit visits to ascertain whether
the CEF courses are operated in compliance with the approved
conditions determined by the LWB.

In the reporting period, the HKCAAVQ has conducted 85 surprise
audit visits and assessed 1,201 applications, which included
306 new applications and 844 applications for amendments to
registered CEF reimbursable courses.
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Operational Review T{ERE

Breakdown of the new applications for assessment of CEF reimbursable courses (1 April 2013 — 31 March 2014)

FEESESERNHT %P FET (2013F481H £20145F3H31H)
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Professional Development Initiatives

To prepare the HKCAAVQ for new responsibilities in the future and
enhance the professional knowledge of our staff, we invited overseas
and local subject specialists to conduct workshops and seminars
on a wide range of themes such as “quality audit and accreditation”,
“effective questioning techniques” and “balancing costs and quality”.
We also invited professional bodies and licensing authorities to speak
on accreditation-related topics and share with us their experience in
accreditation. These exposures have advanced the expertise of our
staff and extended our local and international networks.

Looking Forward

With the increase in internationalisation of higher education, the
HKCAAVQ will continue to explore opportunities to collaborate with
institutions and other quality assurance agencies in different parts of
the world. Further, the HKCAAVQ will evaluate its quality assurance
practices against the International Network for Quality Assurance
Agencies in Higher Education (INQAAHE) Guidelines of Good
Practice for QA Agency. The HKCAAVQ will continue to consolidate
its knowledge and experience in academic accreditation and work
closely with stakeholders to further enhance its services.
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Vocational Accreditation and Development

[RSEFBNDRE

The demand for accreditation and assessment service to the
vocational education and training (VET) sector has been growing
steadily. There has been increase both in number and diversity in
terms of operators and programmes during the reporting period.

Accreditation Service for the VET sector

In the reporting year, the number of new programme operators
increased significantly. The HKCAAVQ completed 38 Initial Evaluation
(IE) for new operators under the Qualification Register (QR) and
120 Programme Validations (PV) for VET operators including public
organisations, education/training institutes, professional bodies, non-
governmental organisations, trade associations, and commercial
corporations of different scales.
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Breakdown of vocational programmes validated (1 April 2013 — 31 March 2014)
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The HKCAAVQ accredited a wide spectrum of programmes such as
pre-employment training, in-house training, in-service training and
professional development programmes, catering for the manpower
development and advancement in major industries in Hong Kong.
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There has been continuous support from industries and public
organisations. During the reporting year, the Council accredited 18
in-house training programmes operated by companies belonging to
various industrial sectors, such as banking and retail, as well as the
Hong Kong Jockey Club and the Hong Kong Police Force.

In 2013/14, the accreditation service expanded to include the school
sector. Yi Jin Diploma (YJD), which provides an alternate pathway
for Secondary Six school-leavers as well as adult learners to obtain
a formal qualification for the purposes of employment and further
study, undertook accreditation in June 2013, and is now recognised
under the Qualifications Framework (QF) as meeting the accreditation
standards at QF level 3.

The Education Bureau also launched a pilot project for accrediting
Applied Learning (ApL) courses, which are recognised as subjects
in the Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary Education (HKDSE). In
December 2013, one ApL course was successfully accredited by the
HKCAAVQ as meeting the standards at QF level 3.
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In October 2013, the HKCAAVQ accredited a vocational training
programme offered by a secondary school for providing students with
basic vocational skills to enter the job market after graduation.

The positioning of the YJD, ApL courses and school-based
programmes under the QF established a major reference point
for learners, parents, institutions, and employers to examine and
benchmark the learning outcomes at senior secondary level.

Quality Assurance Services

Since the implementation of the QF in 2008, the Education Bureau
has formed 19 ITACs for various industries with a view to developing
industry-based Specification of Competency Standards (SCS). In
the development of the SCSs, the HKCAAVQ acts as the moderator.
During the year, the HKCAAVQ moderated the draft SCSs for
the Watch and Clock, Retail, Insurance, Testing, Inspection and
Certification industries, we also revised SCSs for the Hairdressing
industry.

Operators are encouraged to develop SCS-based programmes by
adopting the relevant Units of Competencies specified in the SCS. In
the reporting period, the number of SCS-based training programmes
on the QR has increased from 178 to 235.
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Operational Review T{E$RES

Breakdown of SCS-based programmes (QF levels 1-4) on the QR (1 April 2013 — 31 March 2014)
tBREREMNEIAEIRE (EREBE—ZWR) B A (2013F4A1H £201453H31R)

Industry QF Level
TEER ERERERE
Automatic JTE - 1 - 1
Banking $R77% - - 1 -
Beauty =& % 3 21 30 2
Chinese Catering =\ & 812 7 3 11 -
Electrical & Mechanical Service # 5 2 = 2 1 10
Hairdressing 523 18 31 19 -
Information & Communication Technology & s EH & i =H 3 = = = 3
Jewellry TRE % - 5 1 3
Printing & Publishing NI H Al % 6 -
Property Management #]3& 12 % 8 16 7 4
Watch & Clock $E8k % - 3 10
Total #&# 37 86 79 33
In the school sector, the HKCAAVQ continues to be commissioned BRTH JEREEEYERLTS
by the Education Bureau to conduct the quality assurance (QA) JEREEREBETEEZREFNIE-E
study to ensure the quality of the Applied Learning (ApL) courses. HERR BAEARENRERE LHE
During the reporting period, QA visits were conducted to six ApL RBIRRIZ &= TR e N TR R £
courses which were delivered by five different institutions in the Post- BRBEITTEMER -

secondary education sector.
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Operational Review T{ERE

Assessment of CPD Programmes

To increase the transparency and improve the efficiency of
assessment, the HKCAAVQ acted upon the feedback collected from
the Year-end Evaluation of HKCAAVQ's Assessment Service for the
Insurance Intermediaries and amended the CPD application forms for
the Insurance Intermediaries Quality Assurance Scheme (IIQAS). The
updated forms were implemented in March 2014.

During the reporting period, 85 new, 259 annual re-assessment
and 304 changes of applications were processed under the IIQAS.
Compared to the previous reporting period, there was a growth of
5% and 62% for the annual re-assessment and change applications
respectively but a fall of 5% in new application.

For the Estate Agents Authority CPD Scheme, 15 new, 72 annual re-
assessment and 29 changes of applications were assessed, which
represented an annual increase of 67% and 24% for the new and
annual re-assessment applications respectively compared with the
previous reporting period.
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Breakdown of assessed CPD programmes for IA (1 April 2013 — 31 March 2014)
RAZHRBAN ARFESEEEREZE (201354510 £201453H31H)

85

304 New application
@O ST i
Change of application _‘ HaRIERF X

#

HEERFE

259

FFEZRE

New application
FARIZRPAX R © 85

Annual re-assessment

IR RS 1 259

. Change of application
MENERTE 304

Annual re-assessment
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Breakdown of assessed CPD programmes for EAA (1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014)

BIZNHERBISESZESREEYE (20134818 £201453H31RH)

HEERE

%

Enhancement of Services

29
15 New application
Change of application P A Ak

72

REEILRE

The Facilitating Phase was introduced as a result of the Four-
Stage Quality Assurance process review. Two facilitating models
were designed and pre-tested in accordance with the aims of the
Facilitating Phase to help operators who are new to the process to
be aware of the accreditation requirements; and to bring together
information about the track records of accredited operators to
facilitate the identification of accreditation focus(es) for accreditation
exercise. Three VET operators have been invited to participate
in the pilot study of the two facilitating models. A review will then
be conducted for fine-tuning the Facilitating Phase before its full
implementation.

Looking Forward

With the rapid development and growing public recognition of the
QF, together with the new initiatives and support schemes introduced
by the government, it is expected that the demand for accreditation
service in the vocational sector will continue to increase.

Annual re-assessment

. New application
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Annual re-assessment
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Qualifications Assessment

B

The HKCAAVQ provides assessment services to the general
public, organisations, and government bureaux/departments on
qualifications awarded by granting bodies outside Hong Kong. The
assessment is conducted on a person’s educational attainments
in totality by comparing the learning outcomes achieved through
their learning path against a particular level of qualification in Hong
Kong. We are also engaged by the Education Bureau to provide
qualifications assessment services for prospective teachers with
overseas qualifications who wish to apply for teacher registration in
Hong Kong.

Rising Demand for Assessment Service

In 2013/14, the HKCAAVQ processed 3,531 qualifications assessment
cases, a 6% rise when compared to the figure in the previous year.
This year, more qualifications pitched at the Postgraduate level as
well as Secondary level have been assessed. The United Kingdom
and Mainland China remained the two major sources of demand for
assessment services. During the year, we also witnessed significant
drop in applications for assessment of qualifications originating from
Canada, France, Pakistan and India. The reduction of applications
from these countries was related to staff recruitment practices of
international schools and fewer applications received from the Quality
Migrant Admission Scheme (QMAS) of the Immigration Department.
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Qualifications Assessment Cases by source of application (1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014)

ER T EEERBFRR (201354818 £20145F3H310)

123
Civil Service Bureau
NISES I

554 —
Other Organisations

Hitiis

— 198
Education Bureau

BER

— 2,656
Individuals
ERIAL

Civil Service Bureau
NEEFEHF 123

Education Bureau
HER:198

. Individuals
ERIAL : 2,656

Other Organisations
HiphiE : 554
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Level of Major Qualifications held by Applicants (1 April 2013 — 31 March 2014)
HiEAZRERE (20134810 £201453AH31A8)

382
Others 38
Hhb Doctoral Degree
Bt
124 —’

Secondary School Level 577
PERE ’ Master’s Degree
Bt Doctoral Degree
91 — #+:38

Master’s Degree

258 THt:577

Postgraduate Postgraduate Diploma/Certificate

Diploma/ TR SUR/EE 258

Certificate

o e e Bachelor’s Degree
RIESUR/IEE 2+ :2061 €
Sub-degree
B2z : 91

Sub-degree
1B ‘
2,061 —
Bachelor’s Degree
2+

Places of Award of the Major Qualifications held by Applicants (1 April 2013 — 31 March 2014)
HEAZES2FEERBE (2013FF451H0 £2014563H310)

Secondary School Level
RERE 124

Others
HAt 382

29 56
o " ZQ Japan South Africa
Philippines JEEE ERN %3k
143
51 Others
. . Hi
Hong Kong, China FEI&E# -
62 —\— 792
New Zealand 478 \ Mainland China ) )
\ i . Mainland China . France
23 FE 792 JEE 1 23
France /AE UK New Zealand
1;4 . B 978 . e : 62
; # Australia Hong Kong, China
Pakistan B4 _evtiee e
166 —— USA Philippines
India ENE . SEE 364 . JERE 70
114 —— 978 Canadg Japan
Taiwan, China UK LRt W
REAE EE] Taiwan, China South Africa
187 . REAE: 114 . FA3E: 56
Canada . India . Others
P ENE : 166 Hith:143
LIEN Australia E
S Pakistan
EEHTE 104
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Engaging Local and
International Communities

To keep abreast of the development of international practices in
qualifications assessment, we attended the Annual Conference held
by the UK’s National Recognition Information Centre (UK NARIC) in
London in November 2013. In addition, we were invited to deliver
talks to school principals, career masters and the general public about
our work and procedures in qualification assessment on different
occasions such as the sharing session organised by the Education
Bureau and the education and career exposition. These exchanges
of views and experiences will help the HKCAAVQ to continually refine
its assessment models, policy and guiding principles in qualifications
assessment.

Internal Review

In 2013, the HKCAAVQ continued with its internal review of
qualifications assessment and has incorporated recent local
educational developments such as the Award Titles Scheme (ATS)
and the Use of Credits under the Qualifications Framework into the
QA Service. We have developed our first Country/Area Profile for the
United Kingdom as a platform for sharing knowledge on its education
systems and qualifications as well as serving as an efficient tool for
assessing U.K. qualifications cases.

Looking Forward

With the experience gained in the development of our first Country/
Area Profile, the HKCAAVQ will continue to develop profiles of other
countries/areas which together will cover 80% of all qualifications
assessment cases.

Operational Review T{ERSE
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The Qualifications Register (QR) is a centralised web-based register
established under the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications Ordinance (Cap 592) for qualifications recognised
under the Qualifications Framework (QF). The HKCAAVQ has been
designated in the Ordinance as the authority for developing and
maintaining the QR.

As the public face of the QF, the QR is a free online database
for students, parents, employers, employees, education/training
operators, appointed assessment agencies and the general public
with an aim to facilitate local learners to plan their study paths and
continuing education.

Qualifications on the QR

As of March 2014, the number of qualifications on QR has increased
to over 10,589 representing a substantial rise of 39% when compared
to the previous year. This increase was mainly due to the inclusion
of 2,577 new records from the Employees Retraining Board (ERB)
and new titles arising from early compliance with the Award Titles
Scheme (ATS) introduced by the Education Bureau (EDB). Effective
from 1 January 2014, all new programmes at QF levels 1 to 7 should
adopt titles which confirm to the requirement of ATS before they can
be registered in the QR. At the same time, all new programmes at QF
levels 1 to 4 should show QF credit values in the QR.

In the reporting year, there was a steady increase in the usage of the
QR and the QR hit rates have recorded an annual growth of 45%,
with the highest weekly increase of over 11,000 hits in the middle
of July 2013 following the release of the Hong Kong Diploma of
Secondary Education (HKDSE) Examination results.
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Vetting of QR Records

The HKCAAVQ continues to vet operators’ uploading activities to
ensure that qualifications published on the QR is accurate. Briefings
were provided to operators on a need basis to maintain effective
communication in order to facilitate the vetting process. Of the 613
QR batches uploaded on the QR during the reporting period, the
average vetting time per batch was 1 working day.

Advertisement Monitoring

During the reporting period, a total of 14 cases of misleading claims
involving 12 operators were detected and/or reported. Most of
these cases concerned QF-recognition claims before publishing the
programmes on the QR, and the omissions of required information
in the publicity materials. These cases were satisfactorily resolved
through an educative approach which aimed to help operators to
publish and promote their QF-recognised learning programmes in a
timely and proper manner.

In consultation with EDB, the “Guidelines for Advertisements relating
to the QF” were revised in tandem with the launch of the revamped
QR website in December 2013. The purpose of the guidelines is to
provide guidance and advice to operators and qualification granting
bodies in promoting their programmes under the QF. The HKCAAVQ
will continue to provide guidance and on-going support to operators
and qualifications granting bodies for the timely listing of QR entries
and marketing relating to qualifications being recognised under the
QF.

Award Titles Scheme and Use of QF
Credit

The HKCAAVQ works in concert with EDB to ensure that our work
and processes align with the latest policies and developments in the
QF. During the reporting period, the HKCAAVQ supported the EDB’s
initiatives in the introduction of the Award Titles Scheme (ATS) and
Use of Credit under QF.

Operational Review T{ERSE
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Following the decision made by the Liaison Committee on Quality
Assurance, the HKCAAVQ has started vetting the QF credit
assignment from the extension arms of the UGC-funded institutions.
These institutions can come directly to the HKCAAVQ for vetting
of their QF credit assignment for existing self-financing sub-degree
programmes for uploading onto the QR. A proforma was developed
as a tool to facilitate the vetting of QF credit assignment for existing
programmes currently published on the QR.

The Credit Field for the entry of QF credit values has been enabled on
the QR. Apart from the major search criteria such as qualification title,
QF level and area of study/training, users can also conduct and refine
their qualifications search by using QF Credit of the qualification. As
of March 2014, there are over 400 QR records with QF credit values
published on the QR and the number is anticipated to increase
especially from operators in the vocational education and training (VET)
sector as new programmes at QF levels 1 to 4 are required to show
QF credit values on the QR effective from 1 January 2014.

The QR Website Upgrading Project commenced in May 2013
and was completed in late December 2013. The project focused
primarily on the enhancement of website usability and the functional
changes based on the findings and recommendations of the QR
website usability analysis technical report, resulting in significant
enhancements and improvements in content, functions and
organisation. After a major revamp of the public interface of the
QR website, the revamped QR website now provides a one-stop
approach to searching quality assured qualifications. It is more
convenient for the public to browse and use, especially to search and
save relevant information about qualifications and programmes.

The launch of the revamped QR website was announced at a media
briefing organised by the EBD on 23 December 2013. Following its
launch, we have been receiving positive feedback from operators
on the improved features of the website and in particular, the
qualifications and the operator/assessment agencies search page.
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We also made a significant enhancement in the QR system by
adding a new text box in the “Details of Qualifications Record” page
to allow operators to provide information on attachment, internship,
placement or fieldwork. As the duration of these learning activities
may be relatively long and/or may not be included in QF credit
calculation, this additional information will help inform the public about
these programme components and ensure a good understanding of
the requirements and of the actual learning size of the programmme.

QR Operators Briefing

The HKCAAVQ, with the support of the EDB and the Qualifications
Framework Secretariat (QFS), organised a briefing for the QR
operators on 29 November 2013 to provide them with the latest
developments of the QF and the QR. The event was well attended by
over 220 representatives from both the self-accrediting and the non-
self-accrediting sectors. The briefing featured an update by QFS on
the provision of training and support for the implementation of the
ATS and Use of QF Credit and the progress of the implementation
of these two schemes. The QR Operators Briefing marked another
important milestone in the development of QF and QR and provided
a good platform to exchange views with partners in the QR.

Operational Review T{ERSE
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Looking Forward

The usage of QR is anticipated to further increase with an expansion
of user groups like the adult learners seeking continuing education
in the VET sector. Anticipating an era of rapid development of the
QF, the HKCAAVQ will continue to work proactively to support the
Government’s initiatives in the QF. We will also continue our efforts
in safeguarding the integrity and validity of the QR as a reliable
information source for quality-assured qualifications.
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Research, Consultancy and Training

i3 ~ BARIAR S K23Esl

The HKCAAVQ conducts research to inform practices and to support
policy development. It also runs training events to build up the
quality assurance capacity of programme providers and Specialists/
Accreditation Panel Members in preparation for accreditation
processes. As a leading quality assurance agency in the region, the
HKCAAVQ maintains best practices in quality enhancement through
internal review and monitoring of its services, provides consultancy
services as well as disseminates research findings and practices
locally and overseas.

The Development of Quality Indicators

The Review of the Four-Stage Quality Assurance Process initiated
by the Council in March 2011, conducted under the leadership of
a Steering Committee concluded, among other things, the need
to identify quality indicators to support the execution of the refined
Process.

A Pilot Study was conducted with the HKCAAVQ Financial and
Corporate Governance Experts (Experts) to identify quality indicators
for financial management, which is one of the criteria of Stage 1
Initial Evaluation and Stage 2 Learning Programme Accreditation.
Altogether two experience sharing sessions were conducted for 12
Experts. The outcomes have informed the Secretariat the kind of
financial data needed to demonstrate an operator’s financial viability.
A similar approach will be adopted to explore the quality indicators
under other accreditation criteria with experienced panel members of
various types of exercises. This activity will be taken up progressively
from the second half of 2014.

Gauging Feedback for Continuous
Enhancement of Services

The HKCAAVQ collects feedback from programme providers, Panel
Members and Experts engaged in accreditation exercises, as well as
from institutions using HKCAAVQ services. The surveys, conducted
primarily through an online platform, form part of our internal quality
assurance process for continuous enhancement. Surveys with the
Panel Members and Experts are conducted in-house. In the reporting
period, we continued to engage a professional agency to undertake
the annual Operators’ Survey.
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Data collected from the surveys are kept in strictest confidence and
are used for improvement purposes only. Reports of the surveys are
reviewed by the Council; findings and follow-up actions are shared
with the respondents during activities such as training workshops,
through written reports circulated to respondents, and during the
Annual Operators’ Briefing.

The three-year Comparative Study of Veterinary Qualifications
commissioned by the Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation
Department (AFCD) in 2011/12 to 2013/14 came to a satisfactory
close. The Study covered two accreditation and recognition bodies
in the United Kingdom (UK) and the United States of America (US)
and 10 universities and their veterinary degree programmes from the
Mainland China, Taiwan, UK, US, Denmark and Finland.

The consultancy project, commissioned by the Government of the
Macao Special Administrative Region, aims to develop the scope
and content of the quality assurance mechanism of the higher
education sector. The HKCAAVQ developed four sets of guidelines,
after consultation with the higher education sector and the Macao
Government. The guidelines cover institutional accreditation,
institutional audit, new program accreditation and roles and
responsibilities of external quality assurance agency.

The HKCAAVQ has been further invited by the Macao Government to
develop outcome standards for learning programmes at degree levels
in 2014.
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Specialists Appointment and
Management

As of 31 March 2014, there were 930 Specialists. About a quarter
of the Specialists are from overseas; they provide views and advice
from an international perspective and mainly support academic
accreditation. In the reporting period, 180 nominees were appointed
as Specialists (including seven Experts); and the service of 616
Specialists came to an end, following the standard terms of service.
The HKCAAVQ maintains an online Specialists Register which is
available on its website.

Training and Capacity Building

The HKCAAVQ offers various types of capacity building activities
to prepare programme providers and specialists for accreditation
exercises. These include training workshops, briefings, seminars
and other events. The HKCAAVQ also runs tailor-made in-house
training programmes at cost upon request by interested operators/
organisations.

In the reporting year, the HKCAAVQ organised 24 events attended by
902 participants.

EXETHER

ﬁﬁmmﬁmmat FERERE

HBEWBEER - EFANN —AE
%ﬁ% FHLEEBMFETE g
ﬁ&%mlmm¥ EREHRN - HF
BEETI0RER (BRELR2ME LD
XERER)  MILNERHRFER -
FHB616RERMEEBER - EB
MNEXELMAIEHE L2 -

ZEIEE

TER TR RREENENTERER
B EDES) - T EYY - ERE M AT
A EE - WAL E R E P E FIE
BT ZRETAEBIEIN T -

Eﬁiﬁw ﬂ%%%%%TM%%%
/Eib //\

IREQO2N ©




Operational Review T{ERE

Number of Local and Non-local Specialists
B ERRIFAMERAH

258
Non-local Specialists
AR BER

. Local Specialists
AIER : 663

. Non-local Specialists
FEAHER : 258

663
Local Specialists
AR B R

Breakdown of Capacity Building Events (1 April 2013 - 31 March 2014)
FERBYTIEBEE (2013F481HE201453831H)

Number of
Programme
Number of Number of Providers
Targets Types of activities Sessions Participants SHNRE
HR SEENER BN ZEAH EMERE
Programme Providers  Briefing f 3R 1 98 60
REEMRE Workshop I {Eh 9 316 208
Tailor-made S 281 5
In-house Training
Workshop/Briefing
REBLE I TS/
Hare
Specialists Appointment 1 47 NA
BEX Ceremony
ZiTHE
Workshop T {E#h 6 144 NA
Experience Sharing 2 13 NA
Session
KERH=zEg
On-line Training NA 3 NA
N (among 83 visitors)

(BBABAEBRH L)
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To help build the capacity of Specialists in quality assurance that
underpins the Qualifications Framework (QF) on an ongoing basis,
the HKCAAVQ launched an Online Specialists Resource Centre in
February 2013. The Resource Centre is a portal housing the Training
Manual, a Training Module with video-taped materials on questioning
techniques and other references. During the reporting period, 83
Specialists had accessed the Online Specialists Resource Centre.
Three of them completed the training module. The HKCAAVQ is
developing another training module on evaluating evidence.

The HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the Education Bureau to
run six workshops on the use of QF credits in 2014. The purpose
of the workshops is to enhance participants’ understanding of
the assignment of QF credit value to learning programmes and
the assessment of the assigned credit value by the HKCAAVQ in
accreditation.

Participants’ surveys were conducted for all training events to monitor
training effectiveness. Follow-up actions are taken on a need basis. In
general, the training activities were well-received.

In recognition of its good practice in training and support of reviewers
(Specialists) which has a potential for adaptation among members,
the HKCAAVQ was selected as the winner of the Asia-Pacific Quality
Network (APQN) Quality Award 2014 in the category of Training and
Support of Reviewers.

Looking Forward

The HKCAAVQ will continue to explore ways to better meet the needs
and expectations of the education sector, and to work closely with
our stakeholders to enhance their quality assurance capacities.

ABREEBERATEREREEELEBET
WITERRBIEZED FERR
2013 F2AHEH ERBLEEIRF O ©
BERPOARMEE)FM - BERTS
RGN R EMBEER - TEHEH
A EESBREREABRPL  EF
“NERKIDERELE - FERHR
FERES —EFBTENEM - BRT
DEAREEBLYE -

ABREHE BEIE - N2014F R
5ABED TS » TIEG R IERS
SMEHETEFEN NRE - RTR
AEBMAFEEERS -

HEREBLEEREHE  BREI
EBERCRR - WIRE N E - RS
BEIEEBEEEBE -

TAREEPEHERE 2014 K@
BEWEERR-TEABREIINZIE]
THER BHRAZD/SEREHRE
IEE R FIESIR - g BAVRE -

ey e g B

RREE

AMERESREREAANLTERAE
RAHERREBR S - UEHE RAH
FIHAZE



3 Y Hok 5=

External Liaison & Engagement



48

External Liaison and Engagement
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The HKCAAVQ endeavours to maintain effective communication
with our stakeholders, including operators, Specialists, Accreditation
Panel Members, professional bodies and authorities, as well as other
quality assurance agencies worldwide and the general public. To
foster better public understanding and garner support for the work
of the HKCAAVQ, we continue to reach out to our stakeholders
through an array of activities such as briefings, workshops and
various networking events. We are also committed to building
strong networks with quality assurance practitioners both locally and
globally for exchange of knowledge and experience and cooperation
opportunities.

Facilitating Local Exchange

The HKCAAVQ attaches great importance to enhancing public
understanding of its role as the Accreditation Authority and the
Qualifications Register Authority under the Qualifications Framework
(QF). To this end, we organise seminars, workshops and briefings
to keep the stakeholders informed of the latest developments in
our services. We also arrange different kinds of training to build the
capacity of operators and Specialists for engaging in accreditation
exercises. During the reporting period, we organised 30 activities of
these kinds, involving more than 1,000 key quality assurance partners
including operators, Specialists and Accreditation Panel Members
in the academic and vocational sectors. In support of the Use of
Credit under QF introduced by the Education Bureau, the HKCAAVQ
organised sharing sessions on use of QF credit in April 2013 and
March 2014, followed by a series of training workshops on credit
assignment for operators.
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Apart from taking the initiative to engage the local community through
various briefings and networking activities, we also participated in
and presented at various local conferences and seminars to provide
the stakeholders with updated information of our services. Last year,
we attended 11 local events, such as the Qualifications Framework
Stakeholders Forum organised by the Education Bureau in May
2013 and the Sharing Session for the Retail Industry organised by
the QF Secretariat in December 2013. Throughout the year, we were
also invited to speak at a number of career forums to introduce our
qualifications assessment service to school teachers and students.

The HKCAAVQ values feedback from its stakeholders. Apart from
the annual Operators’ Survey for gauging feedback on our services,
we organise from time to time various focus group meetings to
gather stakeholders’ views and insights. For example, we organised
a focus group meeting on the non-local learning programme (NLP)
accreditation service in April 2013 and invited operators to share their
experiences in the facilitating stage of the streamlined processes.

For the purpose of increased transparency in the quality assurance
process, the HKCAAVQ decided to publish summary accreditation
reports online. For Initial Evaluation (IE) and Programme Validation
(PV) of local programmes (except for purely in-house training
programmes) with contracts signed on or after 1 March 2013,
summary accreditation reports will be published for public access on
the HKCAAVQ website. As of the end of March 2014, a total of 21
summary accreditation reports were published on our website. An
online survey is underway to collect feedback from the public and
assess the implementation. Among the responses we have collected
so far, 95% of the respondents think that the summary accreditation
reports provide useful information.
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To keep ourselves abreast of the international trends and good
practices in quality assurance, the HKCAAVQ seeks to build
partnerships with quality assurance agencies worldwide by
participating in international conferences and receiving delegations
from organisations which share similar missions and objectives in the
enhancement of quality assurance in higher education and vocational
education and training.

In 2013/14, the HKCAAVQ continued our efforts in forging
partnership and collaboration with quality assurance agencies around
the world through entering into collaborative agreements. In 2013,
we signed two Memoranda of Co-operation, one with the Tertiary
Education Quality and Standards Agency (TEQSA) and the other with
the Higher Education Evaluation and Accreditation Council of Taiwan
(HEEACT) to facilitate exchange of information, expertise and good
practices in quality assurance. During the year, we also renewed
the cooperation agreements with the Quality Assurance Agency for
Higher Education (QAA), UK, and the Malaysian Qualifications Agency
(MQA) to maintain a close relationship for the advancement of quality
assurance.

To facilitate more in-depth exchange of knowledge and experiences
with quality assurance practitioners around the world, the HKCAAVQ
participated actively in the international arena. In the year under
review, we participated in seven international conferences and
delivered speeches in three of them, including the Asia-Pacific Quality
Network (APQN) Conference and the International Network for Quality
Assurance Agencies in Higher Education (INQAAHE) Conference
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held in Taipei in April 2013, and the Observatory on Borderless
Higher Education Conference held in London in December 2013. To
disseminate research findings and practices locally and overseas,
the HKCAAVAQ presented papers in two academic journals last
year, namely the Evaluation Bimonthly, Taiwan, and the Journal of
Beijing Open University, China, to share our experiences in training
and capacity building, as well as the criteria and standards for
accreditation of degree programmes under the QF.

During the year, the HKCAAVQ paid visits to 13 overseas quality
assurance authorities and agencies in Macao, Taiwan, New Zealand
and Europe. In October 2013, the Deputy Executive Director joined a
study tour comprised of representatives of the Education Bureau and
the QF Secretariat to visit the New Zealand Qualifications Authority
(NZQA) to compare the policies and procedures of the qualifications
frameworks in both jurisdictions, as well as visits to training
organisations of different industries. In November and December
2013, the Executive Director visited seven quality assurance agencies
across Belgium, Ireland and the United Kingdom, such as UK’s
National Recognition Information Centre (UK NARIC) and Quality
and Qualifications Ireland (QQlI), to exchange information on the
latest developments in higher education and quality assurance and
explore opportunities for future collaboration. During the year, we
received 12 delegations from overseas quality assurance agencies
and education authorities, such as the China Academic Degrees and
Graduate Education Development Center (CDGDC) and the Finance
Accreditation Agency (FAA) of Malaysia, to gain better understanding
of the quality assurance system and regulation in different places. This
international liaison and engagement enables us to benchmark our
approaches against international good practice, leading to continuous
improvement in our work and services.
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In March 2014, the HKCAAVQ won an Asia-Pacific Quality Network
(APQN) Quality Award in the category of training and support of
reviewers. It is the second year in a row that the HKCAAVQ has
been selected as the winner of an APQN Quality Award. The Award
recognised the HKCAAVQ's contributions to training and support of
reviewers locally and regionally and its development of sound and
effective materials for training.

Looking Forward

The HKCAAVQ values the partnership with our many stakeholders.
We strive to develop ourselves into an efficient, effective, transparent
and accessible quality assurance agency. In order to achieve
this aim, we will continue our efforts in extending partnership and
exploring opportunities to exchange ideas and experiences with
our counterparts worldwide. We will also keep on our outreaching
activities to engage stakeholders to promote the community’s
understanding and awareness of our role and functions, and to
ensure that the quality and standard of our services address their
expectations and societal needs.

To benchmark against international standards, the HKCAAVQ will
undertake an external review against the Guidelines of Good Practice
in Quality Assurance developed by the International Network for
Quality Assurance Agencies in Higher Education (INQAAHE). We
believe this exercise will allow us to benchmark against world class
QA practitioners, to demonstrate that we adhere to the international
good practices and to make sure that our approach, especially to
transnational education, addresses the implications of the growing
internationalisation of quality assurance.
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Independent auditor’s report to the Council members of

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications

(Established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (the “Council”)
set out on pages 53 to 90, which comprise the balance sheet as
at 31 March 2014, statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in reserves and cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The council members are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such internal
control as the council members determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 15 of the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Cap.1150), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
council members, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Council as at 31 March 2014 and of its deficit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

19 September 2014
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Statement of comprehensive income

2K
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #E —£—NE=R=+—B L FEUBKIIR)
Note Bzt 2014 2013
$ $
Income YA
Accreditation fees FF & & 30,756,743 28,223,452
Advisory and consultancy fees =& & & £ 22,342,356 22,227,844
Qualifications assessment fees & [ 2T 4 & 7,677,070 7,380,216
Qualifications registry fees & st it & 1,719,298 2,280,739
Government grants B # B 11 2,517,951 4,524,936
Investment income % & WA 3 883,852 975,386
Other income E fh Yz A 4 83,327 609,209
65,980,597 66,221,782
Expenditures 3z
Staff costs 8 A 5(a) 49,722,628 44,660,953
Administrative expenses 771 & 13,905,088 12,881,321
Direct accreditation/consultancy costs E 1 #F 25/ 5k 2% 7,840,655 7,261,846
Council meeting and committee expenses AR @# M EE @ H 753,859 887,929
72,222,230 65,692,049
(Deficit)/surplus for the year X & (E518) /Z & 5 (6,241,633) 529,733
Other comprehensive income H 1t 2 [ W
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
HEEEF B E B EE -
Available-for-sale equity securities: B] {t H & % 7K 7% 5%
— Changes in fair value recognised during the year
AEEEERAABENEE) (756,351) 751,916
— Reclassification to profit or loss upon disposal
PEEREFHEEER 32,160 -
Other comprehensive income for the year Zx F £ H fth 2 [ U & (724,191) 751,916
Total comprehensive income for the year 2~ & E 2 H Uk % & 5 (6,965,824) 1,281,649

The notes on pages 62 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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Financial Report B1i5iRS

Balance sheet
BEBEBXR

as at 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) Z&—NE=/8=+—B(ME%3IR)

Note f1z+ 2014 2013
$ $

Non-current assets 3E R BN & E
Fixed assets [&F & & 7 21,547,982 26,701,599
Investments & & 8 15,257,943 14,312,886

36,805,925 41,014,485

Current assets REIEE

Investments % & 8 - 4,000,000
Accounts and other receivables J& U B 5k 0 H b & U 7k 9 6,233,946 7,954,332
Bank deposits and cash 81717 7k & 3R & 10 43,465,701 37,772,547

49,699,647 49,726,879

Current liabilities RE & &

Deferred government grants & i B2 5 4 B) 11 8,855,079 8,812,830
Deferred revenue #& i U A 12 8,426,891 8,444,065
Other payables and accruals £ fib &~ BR 3 % fE 51 & 3,315,145 2,062,860
Provision for staff gratuities & T 4777 B & Y 5 13 3,830,795 2,316,481

24,427,910 21,636,236

Total assets less current liabilities E EEERBRBE & & 62,077,662 69,105,128

Non-current liabilities 3£ 7% 81 & &

Provision for staff gratuities & T 4777 B & Y &5 13 1,875,064 1,936,706

NET ASSETS ¥ & F{E 60,202,598 67,168,422
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Balance sheet (continued)
BERER(8)

as at 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) Z&—N&E=/A=+—8(M&%5IR)

Note f1z+ 2014 2013
$ $

RESERVES £ & 14
Accumulated surpluses £ &1 & #4 58,074,276 64,315,909
Investment revaluation reserve 1% & & i (% # 2,128,322 2,852,513
60,202,598 67,168,422

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 22 September 2014
ABR-Z—NFNA -+ - At E R REER LM HE

. \|
V’ N
enmnctailly
Chairman /& Executive Director A4#%

The notes on pages 62 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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for the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z —&—NE=F=+—8 L FEUEEIIR)

Balance at 1 April 2012 1420125481 8 #4564

Changes in equity for 2012/2013:
20125F /20135 f#EE ) -

Surplus for the year 7~ 4F & & #4
Other comprehensive income for the year 2% & £ b & [ Uz

Total comprehensive income 2 W & 5t

Balance at 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013
72013534310 #M2013F4 818 K45 8k

Changes in equity for 2013/2014:
20135F/2014F A E R

Deficit for the year 7~ 5 [€ [E518
Other comprehensive income for the year 7% 4 & £ b 2 [ 4 Z5

Total comprehensive income ZE W #H &5

Balance at 31 March 2014 4201453 531 B M &5 &k

The notes on pages 62 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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Accumulated
surpluses

Rt &
$

63,786,176

529,733

529,733

64,315,909

(6,241,633)

(6,241,633)

58,074,276

Investment
revaluation
reserve

BREEMRE
$

2,100,597

751,916

751,916

2,862,513

(724,191)

(724,191)

2,128,322

Total
Ait

$

65,886,773

529,733
751,916

1,281,649

67,168,422

(6,241,633)
(724,191)

(6,965,824)

60,202,598
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Cash flow statement

REMER
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #E —£—NE=R=+—B L FEUBKIIR)
2014 2013
$ $
(Deficit)/surplus for the year &~ % & (E518) /& & (6,241,633) 529,733
Adjustments for: FEEIE R
Depreciation #7 & 8,543,744 4,194,585
Dividend income % 8 4 A (583,554) (450,345)
Interest income F B4 A (300,298) (525,041)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale equity securities
HEHESERAFELFHIRE (32,160) -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets {H & & & & & & 18 - 189,907
Operating surplus before changes in working capital
EELESBBIKERE 1,386,099 3,938,839
Decrease in accounts and other receivables
JFEE LT PR 25K R L A R LK R 1,720,386 8,374,558
Increase/(decrease) in deferred government grants
IR SE BT # B hn/ O 2) 42,249 (4,428,603)
(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue iE ZEU A OBt 4>) /28 N (17,174) 1,160,294
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals
Hio e BR KA EET B A/ Cfi ) 1,252,285 (2,548,412)
Increase in provision for staff gratuities & T %5 Bl & % & 12 in 1,452,672 437,741
Decrease in provision for office reinstatement cost
WA= EER A LE R D - (2,077,558)
Cash generated from operating activities & & EEFFIELNERE 5,836,517 4,856,859



Financial Report B3RS

Cash flow statement (contfinued)
REREx (8)

for the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 8 —f—NFE=F=+—B L FEEEIR)

Note ff it 2014 2013
$ $
Investing activities IR & E &)
Payment for purchase of fixed assets B A & & & & {3 (3,390,127)  (24,319,279)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets H & & & & & AT 15 708 - 2,000
Proceeds from maturity of held-to-maturity debt securities
RHAZINHEKESF I HPAEHIEA 4,000,000 3,884,700
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale equity securities
& AT S IRANE H T IS RIE 2,697,639 -
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale equity securities
FEAAT (&S I AEH K (4,361,200) (1,000,500)
Payment for purchase of held-to-maturity debt securities
BARBRZIMEBESNK - (1,108,400)
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits with maturity of more than
three months at acquisition

FERE AR =B B A R BE IRITE R (G ) /R (10,031,581) 2,873,473
Interest received & Y F B 326,771 586,265
Dividends received & W i% 8 583,554 450,345
Net cash used in investing activities
REETBHFANREEE (10,174,944)  (18,631,396)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
ReRASEEYRIEE (4,338,427)  (13,774,537)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
FNRERBLEEY 37,772,547 51,547,084
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
FRAEECRASEEY 10 33,434,120 37,772,547

The notes on pages 62 to 88 form part of these financial statements.

SBRFE62F F88R HIMT it B AR K #Y — BB °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M#&#317R)

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (the “Council”) is a body corporate
established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance. Under
the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Cap. 592) (the “Ordinance”) the Council assumes
its statutory role as the Accreditation Authority and QR
Authority under the Qualifications Framework (“QF”). As
the Accreditation Authority, the Council is responsible for
developing and implementing the standards and mechanisms
for accreditation of academic and vocational qualifications to
underpin the QF and for organising the accreditation exercises
for the purposes as specified in the Ordinance. The Council
also provides advice to the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR Government”)
on the registration of non-local academic and professional
courses, the assessment on non-local qualifications and also
on educational standards and qualifications generally. The
Chairman, Vice Chairman, all other Members and Executive
Director of the Council are appointed by the Chief Executive
of the HKSAR Government. Also, the determination of
accreditation fees, the financial budget and other operating
policies of the Council are approved by the HKSAR
Government. Therefore the Council considered itself to be a
government-related entity.

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements, its primary
financial and capital management objectives are to maintain
a balance between annual income and expenditure, so that it
has the ability to operate as a going concern and perform its
statutory roles and functions.

The Council is primarily financed through the charging of fees
for academic and vocational accreditation services rendered
which include validations, revalidations, institutional reviews,
quallifications assessments and advisory/consultancy services.
Any operating surplus shall be carried forward to the following
financial year to meet future expenditure required for the
operations of the Council.
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(b)

Financial Report B3RS

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Council is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting year of the Council. The adoption of these new
and revised HKFRSs has no material impact on the Council’s
result of operations and financial position.

The Council has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(note 19).

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investments in available-for-sale equity securities are stated
at fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

EE e )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)

2
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Noftes to the financial statements (continued)

Bk b B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

2

(b)

(c)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgement made by the council members in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
is discussed in note 18.

Investments in debt and equity securities
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Council commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire. Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it
is determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

It is determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by
a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable market.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Held-to-maturity debt securities

Dated debt securities that the Council has the positive ability
and intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated in
the balance sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses.

Impairment losses for held-to-maturity securities are
recognised when there is objective evidence of impairment
and are measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of the asset). Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Council about events that have an impact on the asset’s
estimated future cash flows such as:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; or

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through surplus or deficit. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

EE e )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

BRI e ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

2

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Available-for-sale securities

Other investments in securities, being those held for non-
trading purposes, are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the investment revaluation reserve. As an exception
to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the balance sheet at cost less impairment
losses. Dividend income from equity securities and interest
income from debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in surplus or deficit in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 2()(vii) and 2(l)
(vi), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of debt securities are also
recognised in surplus or deficit.

When there is objective evidence that available-for-sale
securities are impaired, the cumulative loss that has been
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to surplus or deficit. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in surplus or deficit is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Council concerning
the underlying financial stability of the investee as well as
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Available-for-sale securities (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in surplus or deficit in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
surplus or deficit. Any subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in surplus or
deficit.

Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:
— Leasehold improvements Over the remaining
term of the lease
— Furniture and equipment 5 years
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

EE e )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Bk b B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

2

(d)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Fixed assets (continued)

The carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed for
indications of impairment at the balance sheet date. An
impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset, or of the cash generating unit
to which it belongs, is the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific to the assets.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of fixed assets are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in surplus or deficit on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Council determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Council

Assets that are held by the Council under leases which
transfer to the Council substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Council are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Council has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
surplus or deficit in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in surplus or deficit as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payment made.

EE e )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

BRI e ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

2

(f)

(9)

Significant accounting policies

(continued)

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised
when there is objective evidence of impairment and are
measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate where
the effect of discounting is material. Objective evidence of
impairment included observable data that comes to the
attention of the Council about events that have an impact on
the asset’s estimated future cash flows such as significant
financial difficulty of the debtor.

Impairment losses for accounts and other receivables whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Council is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against accounts and other receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to
that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in surplus or
deficit.

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax
The Council is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue
of section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Council has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Noftes to the financial statements (continued)

Bk b B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)
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Significant accounting policies

(continued)

Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Council and the income
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in surplus or deficit as follows:

(i)

(i)

fees for rendering of accreditation services to institutions
are recognised in the period to the extent the accreditation
work is completed;

advisory fees and consultancy fees are recognised in the
period in which such services are rendered;

fees for rendering of qualifications assessment services are
recognised in the period in which such assessment work
is completed;

(iv) qualifications registry fees are recognised in the period in

W)

(vi

=

which such services are rendered;

government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Council
will comply with conditions attached to them. Grants
that compensate the Council for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in surplus or deficit on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred;

interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method; and

(vii) dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 Significant accounting policies
(continued)

(m) Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Council if that person:

(i has control or joint control over the Council;
(i) has significant influence over the Council; or
(iiy is a member of the key management personnel of the

Council.

(2) An entity is related to the Council if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Council are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Council or an entity
related to the Council.

EE e )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)

2
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Notes fo the financial statements (continued)
M BWERMEE (8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

- WY.L - - - hY . Varax ==
2 Significant accounting policies 2 FESTTHEEE)
(continued)
(m) Related parties (continued) (m) PREEER ()
(2) (continued) @ (#&)
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person V) ZEBZE EE1)E
identified in (1). A FT 3R TE A 2 i) =k $E
R o
(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence (Vi) 3t E(1)()IE A FT R E A
over the entity or is a member of the key management THZERBBEEATLE
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). NHEZER (HZEE
AR MEREEAS ©
Close members of the family of a person are those family —ZEAANTHEEEREHAE
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced BEHWA e EZEAANT
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ZEAZENREKS °
3 Investment income 3 K‘EWA
2014 2013
$ $
Interest income F.8 U A 300,298 525,041
Dividend income % B.Ug A 583,554 450,345
883,852 975,386
4 Otherincome 4 HA
2014 2013
$ $
Review of non-QF Accreditation 3F& [ 54 R 15 25 5 & 9,356 9,399
Consultancy fee from external activities 5138 )& Bh # B8 8 & 5,734 66,900
Recovery of insurance claims &% = (& - 530,188
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale equity securities
& AT B IR R EE ) e 32,160 -
Miscellaneous income £ fib I A 36,077 2,702
83,327 609,209

74



Financial Report B1i5iRS

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

M BT EE (1)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)

(Deficit)/surplus for the year 5
(Deficit)/surplus for the year is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

REE (BIR) /BER
A (518) /RIBE B (5
A)

2014 2013

(@) Staff costs B TR

Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥7 & + T & & H A 1& 5
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds 5& il 14 A 78 & 3¢

48,525,608 43,591,839
1,197,020 1,069,114

49,722,628 44,660,953

(o) Other items HfhIE R
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 i Bl & 146,800 131,800
Depreciation #7 & 8,543,744 4,194,585
Operating lease charges in respect of properties ¥ ¥ 4& & HE & A 50,372 2,366,575
Interest income from held-to-maturity debt securities
FHAEIHEBEFHMBWA (49,884) (404,897)
Loss on disposals of fixed assets [EF & & H & 18 - 189,907
Taxation 6 BE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required to be
made in these financial statements as the Council is exempted
from taxation pursuant to section 87 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance.

KA ESIVE T4 SN
o - Rk BRENH®RE
FHREBRBFIGEH -
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Noftes to the financial statements (continued)
M BWERMEE (8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

7

- ,A_| ~.
Fixed assets EE&EE
Leasehold Furniture
improvements and equipment Total
HENER FEAMBZAE R
$ $ $
Cost: B :
At 1 April 2013 720134 A1H 28,019,325 6,205,646 34,224,971
Additions R E 2,960,228 429,899 3,390,127
At 31 March 2014 7220143 H31H 30,979,553 6,635,545 37,615,098
Accumulated depreciation: 25+ & :
At 1 April 2013 120134 A1H 3,591,248 3,932,124 7,523,372
Charge for the year AN [T & 7,811,837 731,907 8,543,744
At 31 March 2014 7220143 H31H 11,403,085 4664031 16,067,116
Net book value: BRH E{E :
At 31 March 2014 73201443 A31H 19,576,468 1,971,514 21,547,982
Leasehold Furniture
improvements and equipment Total
HENER RAMBZAE R
$ $ $
Cost: FA :
At 1 April 2012 20124 A1H 9,507,903 5,317,828 14,825,731
Additions "R & 283,355,501 963,778 24,319,279
Disposals & (4,844,079) (75,960) (4,920,039
At 31 March 2013 742013433311 28,019,325 6,205,646 34,224,971
Accumulated depreciation: 23137 E :
At 1 April 2012 201264 A1H 4,753,695 3,303,224 8,056,919
Charge for the year &K F[Z T8 3,489,725 704,860 4,194,585
Written back on disposals (& i 5 2] (4,652,172 (75,960) (4,728,132)
At 31 March 2013 7201343 A31H 3,591,248 3,932,124 7,523,372
Net book value: JRE EE :
At 31 March 2013 7220133 H31H 24,428,077 2,273,522 26,701,599




Financial Report B1i5iRS

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
M B aE (8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)

Investments 8 RrE
2014 2013
$ $
Unlisted held-to-maturity debt securities, at amortised cost
FELIRHERINMERE S GREHAA) 1,081,927 5,108,400
Available-for-sale equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at market value
EEE TR HHERARNES GEHE) 14,176,016 13,204,486
15,257,943 18,312,886
Less: Unlisted held-to-maturity debt securities, at amortised cost
— classified as current asset
B EEMHERIBRERE S (REEKR) -2 BEARDEE - (4,000,000)
15,257,943 14,312,886
Fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities
REZINMEBIE SN AR EE 1,064,300 5,109,130
Fair value of individually impaired available-for-sale equity securities
ERFERNAHEERABZLEN AL EE 2,482,416 2,591,445

As at 31 March 2014, certain of the Council’s available-for-sale
equity securities were individually determined to be impaired
on the basis of significant or prolonged decline in their fair
value below cost. Impairment losses on these investments
were recognised in surplus or deficit in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(c(ii).

R-E—MNE=A=+—H" &K
PRZEAHEERTESR
EEAREEANES RS TR
R AT E B & E AR
B - BN E RRERIEREN
FR2Q)MFTE A B AT R A

R IRTRER -

Accounts and other receivables 9 FEWERFMEME
I‘I& =h
TA
2014 2013
$ $
Accounts receivable J& Ui 8E 5k 4,614,312 4,867,162
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments
Be - EMEUGRRIER K 1,493,915 2,921,360
Interest receivable & 4 % & 125,719 165,810
6,233,946 7,954,332
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Notes fo the financial statements (continued)
M BWERMEE (8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

9

Accounts and other receivables
(continued)

All of the accounts and other receivables, apart from utility
deposits of $152,000 (2013: utility deposits of $13,600), are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Accounts receivables are due on presentation of billings.
Further details on the Council’s credit policy are set out in note
15(a).

The ageing analysis of accounts receivables is as follows:

FE IR B 5K A EL
Wk (&)

#152,0007t (ZF — =
13,6007) 9F1 & RKE B2
b i MR L L M 2
R AT 4E— R EBUKE -

JEWBR R R R RBIZ A o 2R
REEEBERSER M E15() °

FEW BR SR A BREC AT AN TS

2014 2013
$ $

Current 7k 31 HA 2,237,817 1,053,500
Less than 1 month past due % Hi11& A & 1,920,441 2,261,822
More than 1 month past due #8118 5 A 456,054 1,551,840
2,376,495 3,813,662

4,614,312 4,867,162

All of the Council’s accounts receivables are not impaired
as at 31 March 2014 and 2013. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there was no recent
history of default and there has not been a significant change
in credit quality of the customers. The Council does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

RZE—NWFRZZT—=F=
B=+—8 ' ABI&HELKKE
FIERRERE - BRIEBEATL
% EEERAETIZEHRE
EHBERE  REREF I
WHREREHEEREEEEE —
BERBEEAEE - ARWERE
EAZEHENTMIEA -
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Financial Report B1i5iRS

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
M B (8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)

- Y =+

Bank deposits and cash 10 RITERRERE

2014 2013

$ $

Deposits with banks R 77 & 817 & 22,979,298 22,058,911
Cash at bank and other financial institutions and in hand
B MRTTHHE b IS AETF X 20,486,403 15,713,636
Bank deposits and cash in the balance sheet
EEABRATRORITERLRR® 43,465,701 37,772,547
Less: Bank deposits with maturity of more than three months at acquisition
B EEAR=EA U LR EMRITE TR (10,031,581) -
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
RensXMANEEIREEFEY 33,434,120 37,772,547
Deferred government grants 11 EEHFHEBY

2014 2013

$ $
Balance as at 1 April 724 A1 H 8 45 & 8,812,830 13,241,433
Grants received and receivable = 1 & U % Bh 2,549,919 -
Interest thereon F& &1 Fl 8. 10,281 96,333
Recognised as income during the year £ A 2 #E 2 A U A (2,517,951) (4,524,936)
Balance as at 31 March 73 831 H i) &5 &4 8,855,079 8,812,830
The grants are for supporting the costs of the Qualifications HEEARST N ERFEEED
Framework project and relocation costs of the new office of RN ARKNEHIFERN
the Council. B -
Deferred revenue 12 EZEUW A
Deferred revenue represent amounts billed or received for EEWA BERNRIETE - L
programme accreditation, advice on the registration of non- K IEARH RIZ M A E FE 2L
local courses and qualifications assessment, less amounts BEERmMAERMENEEE -
recognised as income during the year. WHBERNEERAEMANS
BtE o
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Notes fo the financial statements (continued)
M BWERMEE (8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

13

14
(a)

(b)

15

Provision for staff gratuities 13 EIXN mMESEE
2014 2013
$ $
At 1 April 4 B1H 4,253,187 3,815,446
Provision made #i2 # {5 4,019,705 3,478,933
Provision utilised & F8 %45 (2,567,033) (3,041,192)
At 31 March 73 A31H 5,705,859 4,253,187
Less: Amount included in “current liabilities”
B IRBREIAETAEENSSE (3,830,795)  (2,316,481)
Amount included in “non-current liabilities”
BERBREIATABRENSE 1,875,064 1,936,706
Reserves 14 {#15
Components of the Council’s reserves (@ ABRRERENESR
The opening and closing balances of each component of the BEEHEIRAEE—HER
Council’s reserves and reconciliation between these amounts BB ENBMERS - AR
are set out in the statement of changes in reserves. it BEE 7 R Y S ER o
Investment revaluation reserve b) REEGEHE
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative WREGHEERSNEE R
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities held BotEeEZEn AL EEY
at the balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with SEHEB)FEE - WAREM T2(0))
the accounting policies in note 2(c)(ii). Hest s EE -
Financial risk management and fair 15 S EMREENA

values

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal
course of the Council’s operations. The Council is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments
in other entities.

The Council’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Council to
manage these risks are described below.

REE
RABEBEEBRERAEAT
FEEMRBESRR ° 1IN - &
BIAE &R E E A R R A
FBEMEEEHFBRER -

KBASZHRBRARAER
BEERBAMRKANSREARES
BBUER R FEFFINT -
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

Credit risk

The Council’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits, accounts receivables and investments in debt
securities. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of accounts receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These take into account the customer’s past
payment history, financial position and other factors. These
receivables are due on presentation of billings. Normally, apart
from certain customers with good credit ratings, advances
are requested from customers to cover the service fee before
rendering of services by the Council.

The Council’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the balance
sheet date, the Council had a certain concentration of credit
risk as 20% and 81% (2013: 33% and 79%) of the total
accounts receivables were due from the largest customer and
the five largest customers.

Bank deposits are normally placed with financial institutions
which have good credit ratings. Investments in debt securities
are with counterparties of sound credit ratings. Given their high
credit ratings, management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.
The Council does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose it to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Council’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are
set out in note 9.

EE e )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)

15
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Noftes to the financial statements (continued)

Bk b B ()

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

15

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Council’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The earliest settlement dates of the Council’s financial liabilities
at the balance sheet date are all within one year or on demand
and the contractual amounts of the financial liabilities are all
equal to their carrying amounts.

Equity price risk

The Council is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity
securities (see note 8).

The Council’s equity investments are blue-chip companies
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. These equity
investments have been chosen based on their longer term
growth potential and are monitored regularly for performance
against expectations.

At 31 March 2014, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease)
of 10% (2013: 10%) in the market price of the Council’s
available-for-sale equity securities, with all other variables held
constant, would not affect the Council’s surplus or deficit
unless there are impairments. The Council’s total reserves
would have increased/decreased by $1,417,602 (2013:
$1,320,449).

15

(b)

(c)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Council’s surplus for the year (and accumulated
surpluses) and investment revaluation reserve that would arise
assuming that changes in the market value had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Council which expose
the Council to equity price risk at balance sheet date. It is
also assumed that none of the Council’s available-for-sale
equity securities would be considered impaired as a result of a
decrease in the prices of respective equity securities and that
all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2013.

Fair value

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following presents the fair value of the Council’s financial
instruments measured at the balance sheet date on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

EE e )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)
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Notes fo the financial statements (continued)
M BWERMEE (8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

15

(d)
()

Financial risk management and fair 15 SRiEAREENQ
values (continued) REE (&)
Fair value (continued) (d 2REEGE)
Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) ) NAREEYENERITA (B
— E-EBREE - KAE
- Level 3 valuations; Fair value measured using ORI -3 DNEE S
significant unobservable inputs. EQANREE:
R-B-HFR_F—=F=H
At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the only financial instruments =+—8 ABUAREBEYE
of the Council carried at fair value were available-for-sale NEMTARBERBEBBAER
equity securities of $14,176,016 (2013: $13,204,486) ST eyl E R ARE
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (see note 8). HMB AR EEA14,176,0167T
These instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy (ZZ—=%:13,204,4867T) (&
described above. BIMIzE8) c st M T A2
WoBeR LA AREEERSP
BE—ER -
During the year, there were no transfers among instruments in RAFE  TESHMIEERAR
Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3. BEEAMNE— F_HE=-|Z
B BERER o
Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair (i) FEUNARBEIENEMIA
value AR EE
The carrying amounts of the Council’s financial instruments Br Tt A - 2N B AN o B 5
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different EKAAENSRTENERS
from their fair values as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 except as HEOEHWN-_Z—WEN_Z
follows: —=F=ZA=+—HHARE
BEEBEDRITK -
2014 2013
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
RESHE AREE RE$% L]
$ $ $ $
Held-to-maturity debt securities
S ES b e rr 1,081,927 1,064,300 57108400 5,109,130
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

M BT EE (1)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)

Financial risk management and fair 15 SRiEAREENQ
values (continued) REE (&)
Estimation of fair values () AREBEHNMEET
The fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held by KBEFEHAAHfEERRNES
the Council is based on quoted market prices at the balance MNARBEEARGEE AR
sheet date. The quoted market price used for available-for- TERE - RBFFA A HiT
sale equity securities held by the Council is the current bid ERAFBEHEHRYTEREE
price. HE(E o
Commitments 16 7&IE
Capital commitments (@) BEBXREAIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2014 in RZE—WF=A=+—8%
respect of leasehold improvements not provided for in the LHENREmMX REMERE
financial statements were as follows: NIRB BN EARENT
2014 2013
$ $
Authorised but not contracted for B % 18 KT 49 - 2,634,162
Operating lease commitments (b) KEHERE

At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
properties are payable as follows:

R-ZE—ME=A=+—H0 1
BTA@BROMELEHER
BREMNSEAENREL
2T

2014 2013

$ $

Within 1 year 1 & 12 12
After 1 year but within 5 years 1521855 A 17 29
29 41

The Council leases its office premises under operating leases.
The lease runs for an initial period of five years, with an option
to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. The lease
does not include contingent rentals.

ARAEZHEHERMAE - &
HMENLAHEF  WARERE
BEDHAREN  ERTA K
FRAAEHAE HETEIH
Bl -
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Noftes to the financial statements (continued)
M BWERMEE (8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

17 Related party transactions 17 BEBARS

86

Except as disclosed in (iv) below, all transactions related to the
procurement of goods and services involving organisations
in which a member of the Council, key management
personnel and the HKSAR Government may have an interest
are conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with the Council’s financial obligations and normal
procurement procedures.

All transactions related to the provision of accreditation
services to organisations in which a member of the Council,
key management personnel and the HKSAR Government
may have an interest are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Council’s fee charging
policy and fee schedule as prescribed by the Ordinance.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Council had the

following related party transactions:

(i) Honorarium paid to Council members in the capacity of

BRA TV EFTREEE SN - PrE
AREFEKE BWREEAER
MBFAEMNSEWEBETONE
miM R R 58 LT R %5E
15 WERRANBH R R K
ERRBIEFETT

FMERAREEENE  BRE
BABMBTHE SR EEE
THHERDRXZHBLEE X
BEE  WERRABHNE B
WHRRGHTHANER -
REBWER -

BRAMEIHREMBENRZ S
HEERIN - NBIER AT RREE T A2
5

) B E AL TEE S A 2
BB &

2014 2013
$ $
Non-local Council members JEZS 5k B 208,000 312,000

Local Council members are not remunerated.

(i) Key management personnel remuneration

ARBEEE AN E I T UYE
M -

i) FAREIEAEMS

2014 2013

$ $

Salaries and other emoluments ¥ & & H B4 5,516,991 5,826,373
Retirement scheme contributions iE K 5T 214t 7% 25,000 15,500
5,541,991 5,841,873

Key management personnel comprise of the Executive
Director, Deputy Executive Director and Financial Controller.
The above remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
5(a)).

MREEABBREARE 34
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

17 Related party transactions

(continued)
(iiy During the year ended 31 March 2014, approximately

=

27% (2013: 32%) of the Council’s total income are derived
from services provided to the HKSAR Government, and
approximately 6% (2013: 12%) of it are derived from
services provided to other government-related entities.
All the services are conducted in the normal course
of business and in accordance with the Council’s fee
charging policy and fee schedule as prescribed by the
Ordinance.

Effective from 1 September 2011, the Council has entered
into a lease with the HKSAR Government and rented a
vacant school premises in Siu Sai Wan Estate, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong at a charge of $1 per month as its new office
for an initial term of five years. The Council completed
the relocation of its office in July 2012. The HKSAR
Government also provided $10 million funding support for
conversion and renovation of the new office of the Council
(see note 11).

EE e )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M %31 7R)

17 BEAXRZ (8)

(i)

)

HE-_Z-—NF=A=1+—
AIEFE  EXARRBEKA
2T % (ZE—=ZF
32%) 3K & [ B T2 ARTE -
#496% (B —=4F : 12%) 5K
B[R E A BT E B iRt
R%% - MTERISHBER %
BEE YERBABKNE
e EER RIEOIETRN &
B—EXRBKRER -

m-_ZT——F A8
ABREBNEE] T —HEE
W AE AT TRBFR
&AL E/ NEER—FpTZE
BEEBRRE  ERFTOHRA
ERHEFTHAERSF -
KRR —_E——F+ AKX
P8 o BUTE IR 71,0008
TE® BAPWAREERE
BIRAEREBEEERA (2
BIBEET1) o
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Notes fo the financial statements (continued)

M BWERMEE (8)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (M % 317x)

18

19

Critical accounting judgement
Certain critical accounting judgement in applying the Council’s
accounting policies is described below.

Impairment of held-to-maturity financial
assets and available-for-sale financial
assets

The Council follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in determining
when an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired. This
determination requires significant judgment. In making this
judgement, the Council evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment
is less than its cost; and the financial health of and near-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow.

Possible impact of amendments,
new standards and interpretations
issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 March 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2014 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.

The Council is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Council’s results of operations and financial position.

18

19
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Analysis of expenditure

Skl
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z - 2—NE=/F=+—B L FEUBEEIIR)
2014 2013
$ $
Staff costs & T {4~

Salaries ¥ & 43,208,877 39,380,415
Allowances and other staff costs 3285}z E fih 8 Tk 4~ 6,513,751 5,280,538
49,722,628 44,660,953

Administrative expenses 1T H &
Auditor’s remuneration 1% £ 8 Bl & 146,800 131,800
Bank charges fR1T F & & 25,822 17,100
Cleaning /5 2 & 331,428 232,504
Community relations #t & 1% 37,578 34,775
Consultancy fees [ & 373,400 556,000
Depreciation #7 & 8,543,744 4,194,585
Incidental expenses 318 37 tH 2,413 6,963
Insurance 17 k& & 255,391 276,050
IT services & FEHZ AR %5 - 54,819
Legal advisory fees A2 KA E 361,199 1,271,671
Utilities 7K ~ & & 262,515 273,036
Loss on disposals of fixed assets & & & & HH & E18 - 189,907
Membership fee & 8§ & 77,983 43,282
Others E A 78,149 15,449
Overseas visits and conferences 84 H 57 Fl1 & 3% 208,198 193,089
Periodicals, newspapers and books Hi | + SR 4K F & A 38,283 22,465
Photocopying % El1 & 22,975 27,136
Postage 8 & 32,546 48,131
Printing EN R & 141,206 260,906
Publicity & {5 & 419,600 189,280
Recruitment 3 8 88,050 137,427
Reinstatement cost (& A 2 13,700 73,908
Rent and rates 7 & 1 Z £ 433,683 2,936,193
Repairs and maintenance 418 &R & & 254,634 128,883
Securities transaction charges &4 & & & 4,729 4,894
Security (R&Z & 436,099 264,712
Stationery and consumables X £ F13H 3 263,173 203,034
Telephone and facsimile & FIE E & 312,527 308,328
Tools and equipment T B 1 & & 549,896 615,095
Transport and travelling % & & 34,386 31,899
Work related research T {E48 8 i 154,981 138,000
13,905,088 12,881,321
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Analysis of expenditure (continued)
HD T (8)

for the year ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) #Z " f—N&E=A=+—8 L FEMB%EIIR)

2014 2013
$ $
Direct accreditation/consultancy costs E % :F 2/ i B 4

Accreditation costs 5T 2 K 7 6,454,294 6,178,729
Qualifications Register costs & & % it 5k 7 1,386,361 1,081,816
Qualifications Framework project costs & & 28 # 5t &1 5k & - 1,301
7,840,655 7,261,846

Council meeting and committee expenses AR E2EREEE X H
Air passages # = 286,041 430,068
Honorarium payments B & 1~ 5% 208,000 312,000
Hotel accommodation ;& JE {3 758 & 119,922 44,660
Working lunches and dinners 2 7 4F & A A 8x 3 H1 90,957 56,088
Subsistence allowance ZfH & 26,650 24,106
Transport and miscellaneous expenses 2 18 & Fl 5 & 22,289 21,007
753,859 887,929
Total expenditure X i # %5 72,222,230 65,692,049
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Qualifications and Accreditation Committee

1)

To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
accreditation policies, criteria and procedures relevant to
the HKCAAVQ's statutory role as the Accreditation Authority
under the Qualifications Framework (QF) and those relevant to
non-QF-related services.

To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
policies and procedures for maintaining the Qualifications
Register (QR) in fulfilment of the HKCAAVQ's statutory role as
the QR Authority.

To consider/review and endorse for the Council’s approval the
policies, procedures and criteria for undertaking assessments
in regard to

e Non-local courses
e CEF courses
e CPD courses

e Qualifications Assessment
® Any other relevant activities

To consider and advise on any other matters concerning or
affecting the Council’s accreditation and assessment work.
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Personnel and Administration Committee

1) To keep under review the staffing structure of the Council.

2) To monitor human resources policies and practices of the
Council and to recommend changes when necessary, paying
particular attention to staff development and training, the
remuneration package and matters of staff welfare.

3) To keep under review the administrative efficiency of the
Secretariat.
4) To make such other recommendations within its remit, as it

thinks fit, to the Council.

Finance Committee

1) To consider, and recommend for the Council’s approval,
the annual budget of the Council, including any subsequent
adjustments thereof.

2) To consider the medium and long term financial plans of the
Council.
3) To keep under review the financial position of the Council, in

particular its return on investment and fee charging policy, and
make recommendations to the Council as appropriate.

4) To receive, consider and recommend for Council’s approval
the audited financial statement.

5) To recommend, for the Council’s approval, the appointment
of Auditors.

Fund Management Sub-committee
(Sub-committee of the Finance Committee)
1) To set the investment strategy with a view to achieving the

investment objectives approved by the Council.

2) To make major investment decisions and to monitor the
results.
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Standing Review Committee for
Qualifications Assessment

1)

To conduct a review of the decision(s) made by the Council in
respect of a particular accreditation/assessment exercise.

To make recommendations to the Council in respect of the
concerned case with supporting reasons.

To answer questions from the Council after the submission of
the report for the purpose of clarifying its recommendations
and reasons.

To reconsider its recommendations upon request by the
Council.

Where necessary, to set specific rules and procedures for a
review.

Standing Panel on PAA Scope

1)

To advise on the scope of the programme area should there
be disagreement between the HKCAAVQ Secretariat and the
operator under the following circumstances:

(i) when drawing up the Service Agreement on the basis
of the track record of the applied programme area(s)

(ii) when monitoring the offer of a new programme under

the approved PAA status.

To advise on the addition/deletion of programme area(s) in the
List of 21 Areas of Study and Training.
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Accreditation

Accreditation is an authoritative and impartial evaluation of the quality
of learning programmes or the ability of an institution/organisation
in delivering such learning programmes by the HKCAAVQ. As the
HKCAAVQ is the Accreditation Authority under the QF, qualifications
of the programmes accredited by the HKCAAVQ are eligible for
entering into the QR.

Accreditation Authority

HKCAAVQ is specified in Part 1 of Schedule 1 of the Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap 592) as the
Accreditation Authority to develop and implement the standards and
mechanism for academic and vocational qualification accreditation
to underpin the QF. It is also entrusted with the responsibility of
assuring the quality of appointed assessment agencies, qualifications
recognised under the QF and their associated learning programmes.

Accreditation Panel

An accreditation panel consists of specialists with the expertise to
conduct relevant accreditation exercises. A HKCAAVQ staff member
plays the dual role of a Panel Member and Secretary to the Panel.

Accreditation Report

It is the report the HKCAAVQ issues to the agency/programme
provider on completion of an accreditation exercise. It will contain
the determination of that accreditation exercise; and state the validity
period, QF level and conditions and restrictions (if any). It will also
provide the observations and recommendations of the accreditation
panel, as well as the rationale for arriving at the accreditation
determination.
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Applied Learning (ApL) Courses

ApL is an integral part of the senior secondary curriculum to offer
diverse learning programmes for students with interests and
inclinations in areas other than those provided by the academic
school curriculum. ApL courses are provided by various course
providers including tertiary institutions and professional bodies. The
Education Bureau has introduced a three-stage quality assurance
process to ensure that the learning outcomes and standards of the
ApL subjects are comparable to other subjects of the existing and
the new secondary school curriculum. The HKCAAVQ is responsible
for examining the delivery aspects of the ApL courses — the second
stage of the quality assurance process.

Appointed Assessment Agency (AAA)

An Appointed Assessment Agency can be a person, school,
institution, organisation or other body appointed by the Secretary
for Education under the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications Ordinance (Cap 592) to assess the skills, knowledge
or experience acquired by individuals and to grant qualifications in
recognition of such assessed skills, knowledge or experience. Prior to
appointment by the Secretary for Education, the agency first needs
to be successfully accredited by the HKCAAVQ under the same
ordinance.

Assessment

Assessment is a service delivered by the HKCAAVQ. It is an impartial
evaluation of programmes, schemes or individual qualifications
based on a set of assessment criteria developed for a particular
purpose. The assessment result forms an independent opinion on the
standard of the programme, scheme or individual qualifications being
assessed, but does not constitute any recognition of the quality of the
programme, scheme or similar qualifications.

Collective Approach

It is a methodology for a streamlined accreditation service in which a
number of accreditation requests from the same industry/discipline/
provider will be processed concurrently by a single accreditation
panel.
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Evidence-based

It is one of the principles of accreditation. It means that accreditation
decisions will be made based on the evidence provided by the
providers to demonstrate that they meet the accreditation standards
stipulated by the HKCAAVQ.

Fitness for Purpose

It is one of the principles of accreditation. It means that programme
providers or programmes are accredited based on their stated
objectives.

Four-stage Quality Assurance Process

It is a mechanism developed by the HKCAAVQ to conduct
accreditation according to a structured process to underpin the QF.
The stages of the process include IE, PV, PAA and PR. Through
them, the HKCAAVQ evaluates learning programmes and the
education or training capabilities of programme providers under the
QF.

Industry Training Advisory Committee (ITAC)

ITAC is an advisory body comprising representatives from employers,
employees and professional bodies of an industry to develop,
maintain and update the SCS, and formulate an RPL mechanism for
that industry. It also helps promote the QF within the industry.

Initial Evaluation (IE)

IE is the first stage of the Four-stage Quality Assurance Process. It is
an evaluation of whether a programme provider has the organisational
competency to effectively manage and provide adequate resources
to the development, delivery, assessment and quality assurance of its
learning programmes and educational/training services.

Institutional Review (IR)

IR is an evaluation of the overall academic environment of an
institution in delivering its intended learning programmes. An IR
exercise examines an institution’s governance, institutional structure,
academic plans, staffing, quality assurance and resources. If the IR
is conducted for registration under the Post Secondary Colleges
Ordinance (Cap 320), it will also ascertain whether the institution
meets the academic requirements of the ordinance.
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Learning Outcome

Learning outcome refers to a student’s attained knowledge, skills and
application as a result of completing a learning programme.

Non-local Course/Learning Programme

Non-local course/learning programme refers to courses registered
(or exempted from registration) under the Non-local Higher and
Professional Education (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493).

Outcome-based

Refers to an approach which focuses on the empirical measurement
of learners’ performance (outcomes), rather than emphasising the
resources available to the learners (inputs).

Peer Review

It is one of the principles of accreditation. It means that academic
and professional experts with relevant expertise and experience are
involved as panel members in the accreditation process.

Periodic Review (PR)

PR is the fourth stage of the Four-stage Quality Assurance Process.
Programme providers granted a PAA status have to undertake PR in
order to maintain their PAA status. PR is repeated at regular intervals
according to the validity period of the PAA status. PR is used to
ascertain whether the internal quality assurance processes of the
provider continue to be effective and sound.

Programme Area Accreditation (PAA)

PAA is the third stage of the Four-stage Quality Assurance Process. It
is conferred on programme providers with sufficient quality assurance
competency and maturity at the organisational level and a good track
record in their validated programme(s). Upon gaining PAA, a provider
may develop and operate learning programmes within an approved
scope of programme area(s) at specified QF Level(s) for an approved
period of time (validity period), and have the qualifications of its
learning programmes entered into the QR for QF recognition without
going through programme validation or revalidation by the HKCAAVQ.
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Programme Validation (PV) and Revalidation

PV is the second stage of the Four-stage Quality Assurance
Process. It is an overall evaluation of the learning programme to
determine whether its planning and management, syllabuses,
delivery arrangements and assessment methods, are able to achieve
its claimed objectives and deliver its intended learning outcomes.
Programme revalidation is the re-accreditation of programmes before
the expiry date of their programme validation period.

Qualifications Framework (QF)

The QF in Hong Kong is a seven-level cross-sectoral hierarchy
to clearly define the standards of qualifications in the academic,
vocational and continuing education sectors. It was set up by the
Government on 5 May 2008 to promote lifelong learning and to
enhance the capabilities and competitiveness of the Hong Kong
workforce to meet the needs of a knowledge-based economy.

QF Level

Refers to the seven levels of the QF. Learning programmes
undergoing accreditation will be pitched at one of the seven levels.

Qualifications Register (QR)

QR is an online register (www.hkgr.gov.hk) containing qualifications
recognised under the QF. It was set up by the Government under
the QF on 5 May 2008. It provides free information to the public
about QF-recognised qualifications, associated programmes and
programme providers.

QR Authority

The HKCAAVQ is specified in Part 2 of Schedule 1 of the
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance
(Cap 592) as the QR Authority to maintain the QR.

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL)

RPL is a mechanism under the QF to give formal recognition of the
knowledge, skills and experience of people from different industries.
The operation of RPL will be based on the SCSs formulated by the
respective industries through their ITACs.
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Self-accrediting Operators/
Institutions/Providers

Under Schedule 2 of the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications Ordinance (Cap 592), self-accrediting operators in Hong
Kong are The Chinese University of Hong Kong, City University of
Hong Kong, Hong Kong Baptist University, The Hong Kong Institute
of Education (for learning programmes in teacher education only),
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology, Lingnan University, The Open University of
Hong Kong and The University of Hong Kong.

Specification of Competency Standards (SCS)

The SCS represent the industry benchmarks for the skills, knowledge
and attributes required to perform tasks in that industry at a certain
QF level. SCS are developed by the ITAC of the relevant industry.

SCS-based Programmes

SCS-based programmes are programmes designed in accordance
with the SCS.

Threshold Standard

It is one of the principles of accreditation. It refers to the minimum
quality requirements stipulated by the HKCAAVQ.

Validity Period

[t represents the period of time in which an approved accreditation
status is effective as stipulated in the accreditation report. For the
QR, a validity period refers to the registered period of a qualification.
Within the validity period, the qualification will be recognised by the
QF.

This glossary aims to provide a general elaboration of the terms used
in this report or by the HKCAAVQ to readers from all walks of life.
It is by no means an academic or philosophical attempt to analyse
the concepts or connotations for any particular purpose, and is not
exhaustive in its elaboration and in the list of terms.
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